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The city of Brownsville, situated east of the Willamette River between 
Albany and Eugene, traces its history back to the 1850s when Hugh L. Brown 
founded the town. A community^-wide preservation effort known as "Historic 
Brownsville" was instigated in the 1960s to restore structures that played a 
significant role in the city's development. A prime target of the project was 
the Moyer House built by John M. Moyer, early pioneer, manufacturer^ financier 
and community leader. Designed in the Italian Villa Style, the house was 
personally constructed by J.M, Moyer in 1881 using material processed in his 
own plants. The effect of houses in this style was that they looked grand 
and imposing even though the actual dimensions could be relatively modest.

The T-shaped house has a basement, two stories and a cupola observatory. 
Whereas the European "Italian Villas", were of masonry construction, the Moye: 
House was of wood construction with flush wall boards of wood, painted to simt 
late a stuccoed masonry surface. But the substitution of wood, an American 
innovation, is especially perceptible in the trim, particularly at the corner 
where lath is used to create decorative pilasters in a treatment which was 
typical of other Brownsville houses of the period. Several characteristic 
features of the house are a brick foundation, two small porches or verandas, 
one of which has a deck for the second story, regular fenestration, somewhat 
asymmetrical massing, bay windows, a low hipped roof, a decorated, bracketed 
cornice and a cupola.

The Hill Family Foundation of St. Paul, Minnesota, acquired the house and 
donated it to the Linn County Historical Society. Most of the restoration 
work was accomplished between 1965 and 1969. During that period, the brick 
foundation was replaced and the cupola reconstructed. Since then, additional 
work has been undertaken as possible. It remains for nrach of the decorative 
parapet of "antefixes" to be restored. The property is operated as a histori 
house museum by the Linn County Historical Society. .........._
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MOYER (JOHN M.) HOUSE

2. Location

The John M. Moyer House is located in NW % SW % Sec. 31, T. 13 S., 
R, 2 W., of the Willamette Meridian, in Linn County, Oregon. It occupies Lot 
Block 11, of the plat of North Brownsville.

3,

8. Significance

in 1852 and subsequently became identified with manufacturing and financial in 
ests on an extensive scale, and who in the attainment of individual success 
contributed in substantial measure to the development and upbuilding of the 
commonwealth. He was energetic and determined, and what he undertook he 
accomplished."

OGT

ter

GPO 921.724



h- 
u

UJ 

LLJ

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)

n Pre-Columbian! Q 16th Century 

D 15th Century D 17th Century

18th Century 

19th Century

20th Century

SPECIFIC DATE(s) (It Applicable and Known) -i QQ1

Abor iginal

[ [ Prehistoric

PI Historic 

[~1 Agriculture 

[ ~)f Architecture 

D Art 

Q3 Commerce 

| | Communications 

( | Conservation

Q Education 

n Engineering 

Q Industry 

D Invention 

n Landscape

Architecture 

D Literature 

D Military 

HH Music

f-j

Political 

Religion/Phi-

losophy 

Science 

Sculpture

Sociol/Human- 

itarion

Theater 

Transportation

I| Urban Planning 

[H Other (Specify)

The Moyer House was constructed in 1881 by John M. Moyer, who, by the 
time of his death in 1904 had become oneof Oregon's leading manufacturers 
and financiers. Moyer, a carpenter by trade, built the house himself using 
native materials formed in his own manufactories. The house is a fairly 
typical expression of the Italian Villa Style translated into the vernacular 
However, some of the decorative trim is handled in a manner peculiar to 
Brownsville houses of the period.

Having half ownership in a wagon, three horses, provisions, and his 
carpenter*s skill, Moyer started from Ohio for Oregon in 1852. Favorably 
impressed with the mid-Willamette Valley, Moyer decided to locate near the 
present town of Brownsville. He worked there as a carpenter until 1857, 
when he and his new wife, the daughter of the founder of Brownsville, settl 
on a tract of one hundred and sixty acres near Brownsville. They later 
purchased sixty adjoining acres. They began house-keeping in a house of bo: 
construction. Moyer also provided furniture of his own making. When the 
new town of Brownsville was laid out, he purchased several lots and built 
another box or "slab" house in the town. . > ,

Moyer purchased a sash and door factory in North Brownsville in 1863. 
Subsequently/-mier$![!$$:, installing new machinery and other necessary equip­ 
ment, he succeeded in developing a thriving business. In association with 
others, he organized the Eagle Woolen Mill at Brownsville in 1864. The 
mill was sold in 1875 to a syndicate organized by Moyer, and the Brownsvill 
Woolen Company was incorporated with Moyer as president. Under Moyer ! s 
management, earnings of the mill increased each year.

It was during the period of growing prosperity from his local investme 
that Moyer built his Italian Villa. He had not yet achieved the level of 
prosperity in which he could afford to import laborers and materials to 
build the type of home he desired. He relied upon his own carpentry skill 
and his sawmill, door and sash factory to provide what was needed.

In 1889 the Brownsville Woolen Company was sold, and Moyer purchased a 
clothing store in downtown Portland. In that year he organized the Albany 
Woolen Mill, of which he became president. In 1888 he became one of the 
incorporators of the Bank of Brownsville, of which he was made president

Extending his efforts even further, he organized the Bank of Woodburn 
in 1890 and became its vice president.

When John M. Moyer died in 1904 at the age of seventy-five, he had 
extensive holdings in Brownsville, elsewhere in Linn County, and in Portland 
where he had established a chain of stores known as the Moyer Stores. Char 
Henry Carey wrote in his History of Oregon; "In the passing of J.M. Moyer o:: 
Brownsville, Oregon lost one of her honored pioneers who came to this state
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